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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Good morning.

          3  Welcome to this Hearing of the City Council's

          4  Committee on Transportation.  My name is John Liu.

          5  I have the privilege of Chairing this Committee.

          6                 Today, the Committee will consider

          7  proposed Intro. Number 94- A, a bill that would

          8  mandate minimum service and schedule requirements

          9  for the Staten Island Ferry.  This Committee heard

         10  testimony on the predecessors to this bill, Intro.

         11  Number 56 in the Council's prior legislative

         12  session, and proposed Intro. Number 94- A on October

         13  16, 2002, and on April 22, 2004, respectively.

         14                 Proposed Intro. Number 94- A would

         15  accomplish several things.  The first would be to

         16  establish a minimum service schedule for the Staten

         17  Island Ferry.  The schedule set forth in the bill

         18  seeks to more adequately make service comport with

         19  the actual needs of Staten Islanders.  The minimum

         20  schedule will provide for greater service than is

         21  currently provided in recognition of the needs of

         22  individuals seeking to travel by mass transit

         23  between Staten Island and Manhattan.

         24                 We are all acutely aware of the fact

         25  that the Staten Island Ferry serves as Staten
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          2  Island's principal means of mass transit and

          3  connection to the rest of the City.  It is how most

          4  Staten Islanders travel to and from work, as well as

          5  to many other important destinations.  Because it is

          6  a primary means of public transportation for so many

          7  New Yorkers in Staten Island, service should be

          8  maintained at equitable levels that at least meet

          9  the demand.  And, that is the heart of proposed

         10  Intro. Number 94- A, to ensure that Staten Islanders

         11  have an appropriate, reliable and frequent mass

         12  transit option.

         13                 The second thing that the bill would

         14  do is to provide for certain permissible service

         15  disruptions, such as mechanical malfunctions or

         16  severely inclement weather.  However, we are

         17  building accountability into the bill.  Service

         18  would have to be restored within 48 hours of the

         19  disruption, and a written report detailing the

         20  reasons why the disruption occurred would have to be

         21  submitted to the Speaker of the City Council by the

         22  Department of Transportation.

         23                 If service is disrupted for longer

         24  than 48 hours, the report would have indicate why

         25  and what is being done to resolve the problem.
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          2  Service disruptions lasting for longer than 30 days

          3  would require the approval of the City Council by

          4  local law.  An approval by local law would also be

          5  required for any reduction of service.

          6                 In short, the Staten Island Ferry is

          7  an important part of New York City's mass transit

          8  system.  It is the link between Staten Islanders and

          9  other New Yorkers.  It is the way. It is what people

         10  rely upon to get to and from work.  It is a

         11  necessary connection and mass transit option in our

         12  City, and I look forward to hearing more testimony

         13  on this bill and taking a vote on it today.

         14                 At this time, I'd like to turn over

         15  the floor to the main sponsor, Council Member Mike

         16  McMahon.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Thank you

         18  Mr. Chairman and I'm happy that I am, at this very

         19  moment, joined by my colleagues, Andrew Lanza and

         20  Jim Oddo from Staten Island, because this certainly

         21  has been a bipartisan effort for the last two and a

         22  half years, what we have tried to accomplish for the

         23  people of Staten Island, what we are about to

         24  accomplish today.

         25                 We are rushed and late, our schedules
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          2  are thrown totally out of whack because of meetings

          3  and trying to get on elevators that weren't running

          4  and trying to make a connection, and I think that's

          5  very much the feeling that any Staten Islander or

          6  New York City resident must feel on a Saturday or a

          7  Sunday or late in the evening.  Because, quite

          8  simply, if you do not have a reliable means of

          9  transportation that you can count on to get to work

         10  and get from home to work, then you must have that

         11  very feeling that we have today, where you are

         12  stressed, where you are late, and it is not right.

         13                 What this bill does, is it provides

         14  transportation fairness to the people of Staten

         15  Island.  This is not some special treatment that we

         16  ask for.  This is not a luxury that we ask for.

         17  This is simply the ability for Staten Islanders to

         18  get to work and to get home on time and not to have

         19  to worry about missing a connection, like we may

         20  have done today, and then having to sit for up to an

         21  hour, so that you can get home to your family.

         22                 Consider this fact.  A nurse or a

         23  building worker who gets out of work in Midtown New

         24  York, say there are two of them at midnight, on any

         25  given week night.  One is going home to Brooklyn,
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          2  can go down and get a train and get home probably in

          3  about a half an hour.  The commuter from Staten

          4  Island is certainly not going to make it down to the

          5  12:30 ferry, and then has to sit until 1:30 in the

          6  morning to a get a ferry to get home, and with some

          7  luck, maybe gets home at 2:00 or 2:15 in the

          8  morning.  That's over a two hour commute.  That's

          9  not fair.

         10                 What this bill does, is it says,

         11  quite simply, that the people of Staten Island are

         12  entitled to the same basic minimum service that the

         13  rest of the people of the City of New York are

         14  entitled to.  You know, this is something that we

         15  have fought for for a long time.  But, it's not

         16  something new.  Up until the mid  '60's, the Staten

         17  Island Ferry ran every ten minutes during rush hour

         18  and the minimum headway was every 30 minutes.

         19                 Thanks to the leadership of the

         20  people from the Staten Island Ferry Riders

         21  Committee, who are here with us today, thanks to the

         22  leadership of Chairman John Liu of this Committee

         23  and Mitchell Schwartz, his Analyst, whose worked so

         24  hard, the Deputy Director of Infrastructure,

         25  Division of the New York City Council and thanks to
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          2  my colleagues, Andrew Lanza and Jim Oddo, and thanks

          3  to the hundreds of ferry riders who've written

          4  letters, thanks to the editorials of the Staten

          5  Island Advance, that I'm going to hand out to my

          6  colleagues today, we are going to, today, right a

          7  wrong, that should have been righted a long time

          8  ago.  As others have said, it should not take a law

          9  from the City Council to get this done, but if

         10  that's what it takes, that's what we are prepared to

         11  do.  I thank my colleagues for their support in

         12  this.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  We have a statement

         14  from Council Member Andrew Lanza, a Member of this

         15  Committee.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  Thank you Mr.

         17  Chairman, and I want to publicly thank you, Mr.

         18  Chairman, as well as my colleague, Councilman

         19  McMahon, for this important piece of legislation.

         20  And, it has been a bipartisan and a good working

         21  effort between the Staten Island delegation and with

         22  Councilman Oddo, the Minority Leader, and this

         23  Transportation Committee.

         24                 Let me state the obvious here, which

         25  I think helps underscore the importance of this
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          2  legislation that my colleague has put forward here.

          3  Staten Island is an island, which is connected to

          4  the mainland by three obsolete and decaying bridges,

          5  and there's one more bridge that connects it to the

          6  rest of the City, the Verranzano Bridge.  We have no

          7  subways.  We have been on the short end of the stick

          8  decade after decade when it comes to public

          9  transportation and mass transit.  We simply are

         10  underserved.  We simply have been ignored by this

         11  City when it comes to public transportation.

         12                 The express bus service, to the

         13  extent that it exists, is severely lacking and

         14  disgraceful.  Staten Islanders are held hostage

         15  every single day to this lacking mass transit

         16  infrastructure, and you can look at a schedule on a

         17  piece of paper and you can count how many boats

         18  there are.  But, that piece of paper can never do

         19  justice to the plight that Staten Islanders face

         20  every single day.  It may look like a half hour to

         21  you all, but that's a half hour on top of an hour,

         22  an hour and a half, that Staten Islanders have to

         23  face in their Lewis and Clark expedition to get to

         24  and from work every single day.  It's disgraceful.

         25                 This legislation, I think, goes a
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          2  long way in filling some of the gaps with respect to

          3  that lacking infrastructure, and you need only get

          4  on one of these boats.  You know, I don't know when

          5  these studies are done and what twilight world

          6  they're done, but, you know, go on one of the boats,

          7  wait in the, wait for a boat, and you'll understand

          8  that the boats are used, they are vital, they are

          9  necessary, and Staten Island certainly deserves to

         10  have some fairness with respect to the public

         11  transportation that it has, and this bill goes a

         12  long way. So, thank you Mr. Chairman, Councilman

         13  McMahon, Councilman Oddo, and all on this

         14  Transportation Committee, I appreciate this, and the

         15  Staten Island commuters appreciate it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Council Member Jim

         17  Oddo.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Thank you, very

         19  briefly Mr. Chairman, Staten Islanders aren't greedy

         20  in terms of City services.  We're not selfish when

         21  it comes to municipal government.  I think all

         22  Staten Islanders have ever asked for is our fair

         23  share and our piece of the services pie.  I think

         24  Councilman McMahon said it best, we shouldn't be

         25  criticized that we're doing this legislatively.  It,
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          2  this should not have reached this crescendo or this

          3  head in this manner.  But, it has, and I think its

          4  incumbent upon Mike McMahon, Andy Lanza and I, as

          5  the Staten Island delegation, to get these services

          6  one way or another.  So, I want to commend Mike and

          7  Andrew and I want to thank Chairman Liu, and I want

          8  to thank the Speaker.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Mr.

         11  Chairman, if I could just add to my statement also,

         12  because I just wanted to wait until the graphs were

         13  over there.  As everyone knows, on Sunday, we issued

         14  this report, which was an investigative analysis of

         15  ferry service and ridership and conditions, and it

         16  really underscored and gave witness and proof to

         17  what we've been saying all along.  As you see on the

         18  graph over there, the population of Staten Island

         19  has grown dramatically, while service has remained

         20  constant over the past many years, going back to the

         21  late  '70's. It is time, and as this report

         22  underscores, and as we will hear today from Staten

         23  Islanders, that it is time to get serious about

         24  service.

         25                 I just want to say one last thing,
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          2  because the fairness issue was borne out by that

          3  chart as well, that if you look at the other

          4  boroughs, and you see the availability of public

          5  mass transportation into and out of the City center,

          6  or where people work, you can see that the people of

          7  Staten Island are treated unfairly, and I want to

          8  thank Council Member Eric Gioia and his staff with

          9  the investigation committee for their great work

         10  that they have done, and I want to thank Speaker

         11  Miller as well for doing that.

         12                 Just one last comment.  The

         13  Department of Transportation, under Commissioner

         14  Iris Weinshall, has responded in great ways to the

         15  safety concerns that were brought to light,

         16  especially by the crash of October 15th, a little

         17  over a year ago.  This is not, in any way, to say

         18  that they have not done their job in that.  But, the

         19  problem is that we see a strong connection between

         20  frequent and regular service and safety.  The more

         21  frequently the ferry runs the more attention to

         22  detail, we think it will be safer and this will add

         23  to the safety efforts.

         24                 We are grateful what has been done,

         25  but we believe that a commitment to fair, equitable

                                                            13

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  and reasonable service is the last step that has to

          3  be done and that's why we push forward with this

          4  initiative today.  Thank you Mr. Chairman and thank

          5  you to my colleagues for your indulgence.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  We

          7  will, we are pleased to be joined by representatives

          8  of the Administration, David Woloch, the Deputy

          9  Commissioner of the Department of Transportation and

         10  Captain James DeSimone, the Chief Operating Officer

         11  for the Staten Island Ferry.  Following them, we'll

         12  hear from Keith Parascandola, representing

         13  Assemblyman John Lavelle, and then community

         14  activists Tamara Coombs, and John Luisi.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Good

         16  morning.  I am David Woloch, Deputy Commissioner for

         17  External Affairs at the New York City Department of

         18  Transportation, and with me here today is Captain

         19  James DeSimone, Chief Operating Officer of the

         20  Staten Island Ferry.

         21                 Thank you for inviting us here to

         22  testify on Intro. 94- A.  After my testimony on the

         23  bill itself, I would like to use this opportunity to

         24  comment on the Council's report that the Councilman

         25  mentioned, released earlier this week, which
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          2  provided recommendations on how to improve ferry

          3  service.

          4                 As you know, DOT has testified on

          5  this bill at previous hearings, and I would like to

          6  state from the outset that our position on this

          7  legislation has not changed.  While this bill is

          8  certainly a well- intentioned attempt to provide

          9  additional transit options to Staten Islanders, DOT

         10  does not support it.

         11                 First, it essentially attempts to

         12  micromanage the Staten Island Ferry operation by

         13  mandating a specific ferry schedule  -- okay, by

         14  mandating a specific ferry schedule, which would

         15  leave no discretion to DOT.  I'd like to note that

         16  for the Council to legislate a ferry schedule is not

         17  consistent with the New York City Charter mandates

         18  regarding separation of powers, in that the City

         19  Council's role is to create generalized standards,

         20  while the Mayor's or his or her appointee's role is

         21  to enforce those standards in making individualized

         22  determinations, while carrying out standards and

         23  policies established by City ordinances.

         24                 Secondly, the additional monetary

         25  resources needed in order to provide this service
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          2  far exceeds passenger demand for the service.  The

          3  current demand for overnight service does not

          4  justify increasing such frequency beyond the present

          5  service, which is hourly from midnight until 6:00

          6  a.m.  Our Austen- class boats, which have a

          7  passenger capacity of 1,280, are used to provide

          8  overnight service.  Our findings show that the

          9  average number of passengers on each overnight boat

         10  is 146, which translates into a load factor of only

         11  11 percent.

         12                 DOT conducted passenger counts in the

         13  Spring of 2002, and found that the number of late-

         14  night passengers utilizing the ferry ranged from a

         15  low of 23 passengers from St. George at 2:00 a.m. On

         16  a Thursday in February, to 572 passengers from

         17  Whitehall at 1:30 a.m. On a Saturday in June.  The

         18  average daily ridership on the Staten Island Ferry,

         19  between Whitehall and St. George is 65,000

         20  passengers.  Overnight ridership averages just 1,760

         21  passengers, or only 2.7 percent of the daily

         22  average.

         23                 As we have stated at previous

         24  Hearings, the extra nighttime service, as proposed

         25  in this bill, is irresponsible given not only low
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          2  demand for the service, but also the corresponding

          3  costs involved.

          4                 Our current overnight schedule, which

          5  includes six trips in each direction, using one

          6  Austen- class vessel, costs the City approximately

          7  $3 million annually, with a corresponding cost per

          8  passenger of $4.60 per trip.  This bill requiring

          9  half hour service, would cost the City an additional

         10  $3.4 million annually for the additional weekday

         11  nighttime service alone, which would more than

         12  double the cost of overnight service to $6.4

         13  million, and would inflate the cost per passenger to

         14  almost $10.00 per trip.

         15                 Included in this calculation is the

         16  cost of an additional 330,000 gallons of fuel, that

         17  would need to be spent annually, and the extra 25

         18  crew members and support staff that DOT would be

         19  required to hire in order to comply with U.S. Coast

         20  Guard regulations and to abide by the GMAT

         21  recommendations made earlier this year.  I'd like to

         22  ask the Council, what corresponding budget reduction

         23  should be taken in order to accommodate this

         24  significant cost increase?

         25                 The expanded schedule would also
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          2  increase the wear and tear on our boats and require

          3  us to accelerate the replacement of the Austen-

          4  class boats by approximately five years to 2011, at

          5  a cost of approximately $50 million per boat.  The

          6  bill would also require the doubling of NYPD

          7  coverage on our boats, and due to the age of the

          8  existing Staten Island Ferry fleet and our mandated

          9  U.S. Coast Guard maintenance schedules, which

         10  require the boats to be dry- docked, it would force

         11  us to use our larger boats, the 3,500 passenger

         12  Kennedy- class, and looking forward, our new 4,400

         13  Molinari- class ferries, during a four month period

         14  each year.

         15                 Lastly, with regard to providing

         16  increased overnight service, I'd like to point out

         17  that the MTA's bus, subway and Staten Island Railway

         18  schedules are all built around meeting Staten Island

         19  Ferry departures and arrivals.  There would be no

         20  transit links to serve the passengers on the

         21  additional boats, if these entities, if these

         22  entities decided not to incur the additional costs

         23  associated with the expanded ferry service.

         24  Therefore, any potential benefit derived from

         25  increased ferry service would be eliminated.
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          2                 Intro. 94- A also similarly calls for

          3  half- hourly weekend service, and we estimate this

          4  cost at approximately $1.2 million, which supports

          5  the hiring of 12 additional staff and fuel costs.

          6                 In addition, Intro. 94- A mandates 15

          7  minute service Monday through Friday, between the

          8  hours of 7:00 and 9:00 a.m., which would require us

          9  to add one additional boat to provide an additional

         10  round trip between 7:00 and 8:00 a.m.  As you may

         11  know, DOT currently provides four departures per

         12  hour, Manhattan- bound, from St. George between 7:00

         13  and 8:00 a.m. These departures are spaced at 20

         14  minute intervals, at 7:00, 7:20, 7:40 and 8:00 a.m.

         15  Between 8:00 a.m. And 9:00 a.m., the departures are

         16  spaced at 15 minute intervals, at 8:15, 8:30, 8:45

         17  and 9:00.

         18                 As we've said previously, our

         19  existing capacity at the seven to eight hour far

         20  exceeds the demand.  This additional service would

         21  translate into a cost of nearly $400,000 a year,

         22  which includes additional staff, crew overtime and

         23  fuel costs. Also, should the schedule be

         24  implemented, it would shorten the boarding time of

         25  the ferries between 7:00 and 8:00, which would
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          2  surely inconvenience some passengers trying to meet

          3  their boats.

          4                 This concludes my comments on the

          5  bill.  Now, I'd like to turn to the Council's

          6  report, An Assessment of Staten Island Ferry Service

          7  and Recommendations for Improvement.

          8                 First, it is very puzzling that while

          9  this report recommends half- hourly nighttime and

         10  weekend service and goes at length to count and

         11  analyze morning rush, morning rush passenger demand,

         12  it does not include any ridership data or analysis

         13  to back- up the nighttime and weekend need.

         14  Moreover, it is the nighttime and weekend service

         15  that comprises the bulk of the cost, $4.6 million of

         16  the nearly $5 million needed to implement the

         17  provisions of the entire bill.

         18                 It's irresponsible that while the

         19  Council's investigators conducted passenger counts

         20  for the weekday morning rush hours, and assessed

         21  those counts, there is not data presented in the

         22  report to back- up the need for the other additional

         23  service.  As I stated earlier, DOT's passenger

         24  counts conclude that the demand for overnight

         25  service simply does not warrant the cost.
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          2                 I'd also like to point out that the

          3  Council's report concludes that DOT does not have

          4  accurate mechanisms to count ferry ridership, but

          5  then, at the same time, adopts our methodology to

          6  conduct their own passenger counts and then uses

          7  these results to back- up their own argument.  So,

          8  if the Council's conclusion is that we are not

          9  conducting accurate counts, and our numbers are

         10  wrong, how can yours be right if you're using the

         11  same methodology?

         12                 The report also questions the size of

         13  the City's newly purchased Molinari- class ferries.

         14  Let me point out that the decision to purchase these

         15  three new boats was based on a comprehensive study

         16  and analysis undertaken by the previous

         17  Administration, while neither the Mayor, the

         18  Commissioner or the current ferry management team

         19  were here at the time, a comprehensive study was

         20  commissioned and conducted almost a decade ago that

         21  concluded, based on increased population and

         22  demographic trends, that these boats were the ideal

         23  choice.

         24                 The study concluded that increased

         25  volume on the ferries could be expected, not only
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          2  due to a growth in population on Staten Island, that

          3  you reference, but also due to the potential impact

          4  of other regional transportation improvements, such

          5  as the reconstruction of the Gowanus Expressway.

          6                 Next, I think it's important to note

          7  that the Council's report overstates the capacity of

          8  the new Molinari class boats.  The new boats have

          9  inside seating capacity for 2,135, compared to the

         10  Kennedy- class boats, which have a capacity of 2,225

         11  passengers.  The new boats were designed with input

         12  from the Staten Island community, based on feedback

         13  from passenger surveys, which indicated that Staten

         14  Islanders wanted more amenities, including more

         15  external space and external seats, which were both

         16  accommodated.

         17                 It is also important to understand

         18  that capacity is not the actual number of seats, but

         19  the number of passengers that can safely be

         20  accommodated on a boat.  Furthermore, given the

         21  possibility of mechanical problems and potential

         22  other emergency needs, the capacity of these boats

         23  was clearly a prudent decision.

         24                 Finally, I'd like to point out that

         25  the study also focused on a number of alternatives,
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          2  including the use of smaller, faster ferries.

          3  However, we note that the Council did not conduct

          4  any analysis concerning the operational costs

          5  associated with utilizing smaller boats.  It was the

          6  expert opinion of those conducting the study in the

          7  mid  '90's, from the previous Administration, that a

          8  more detailed investigation of replacing the

          9  Kennedy- class vessels with smaller, faster ferries

         10  cannot be justified.

         11                 Now, this justification was in part,

         12  was based in part on the requirement of five

         13  smaller, faster ferries to accommodate the service

         14  and provide for redundant equipment, was far more

         15  costly than replacing the three Kennedy- class

         16  vessels with equivalent new builds.  The installed

         17  propulsion horsepower for a single fast ferry was

         18  estimated to be greater than three new- built

         19  Kennedy- class replacements combined and, therefore,

         20  the cost of fuel for a fast ferry operation would be

         21  many times greater than the fuel cost of the

         22  Kennedy- class replacements. And, the short length

         23  of the trip and the essentially fixed time required

         24  for embarking and disembarking passengers and for

         25  berthing and unberthing weighed against the
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          2  increases in vessel speed did not provide the

          3  economic efficiencies to justify this alternative.

          4                 Further, it was assumed that any such

          5  small, faster ferries would be constructed of

          6  aluminum alloy, which is the industry standard, to

          7  achieve the necessary vessel weight reduction in

          8  higher speed.  However, during the past two Winters,

          9  heavy ice in and around New York Harbor has caused

         10  numerous suspension of service for the smaller,

         11  faster ferries in private fleets in the Harbor,

         12  whereas the Staten Island Ferry fleet has continued

         13  to operate on schedule.

         14                 Going forward, DOT is of the opinion

         15  that the small, fast ferry alternative should be

         16  revisited when the planning begins for the

         17  replacement of the Barberi- class vessels, which are

         18  now approaching 25 years of age, and the end of

         19  their service life.  Continuing technological

         20  advances in vessel design and propulsion systems

         21  necessitates a closer investigation of such

         22  alternatives.

         23                 Let me conclude by saying again that

         24  while Intro. 94- A represents a well- meaning

         25  attempt to expand ferry service, the passenger

                                                            24

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  demand does not warrant the nearly $5 million annual

          3  cost that DOT, alone, would need to implement the

          4  added service, funding that simply is not available.

          5    While there may be federal assistance in the

          6  future to provide smaller boats that could allow for

          7  more frequent service, at this time, that additional

          8  support is not in place.

          9                 We are moving the Staten Island Ferry

         10  in a direction where more resources will be needed

         11  to ensure safe, first- rate service, not less.  We

         12  are also moving forward with the most aggressive and

         13  dramatic overhaul this ferry operation has seen

         14  since its inception.  The riders of our ferry

         15  deserve no less.

         16                 We are nearing the completion of the

         17  reconstruction of the Whitehall and St. George

         18  Terminals, which are in the midst of being

         19  transformed into two world- class transportation

         20  hubs.  We are in the final stages of constructing

         21  three new world- class ferries that will contain

         22  state- of- the- art technology and amenities for

         23  Staten Islanders for many years to come.  We are

         24  moving forward with implementing the recommendations

         25  identified in the GMATS report that will transform
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          2  and completely overhaul the very nature of the

          3  Staten Island Ferry itself, including its

          4  administration, operation and organization.

          5                 As we grapple with improving existing

          6  service, it would be irresponsible to offer new

          7  service that we are not prepared financially to

          8  provide.  Nevertheless, DOT is certainly willing to

          9  review ridership trends to see if schedules can be

         10  improved upon in 2005, after the construction at the

         11  Whitehall and St. George Terminals is completed, our

         12  new computer- based passenger counting equipment is

         13  in place, and our three new Molinari- class ferries

         14  are available.  It would be reasonable to assume

         15  that ridership trends might change after the

         16  terminals are completed and DOT will be in a much

         17  better position at that time to assess the

         18  schedules.

         19                 Thank you again for inviting me here

         20  today, and at this time, we'd be happy to answer any

         21  questions.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Deputy

         23  Commissioner Woloch.  Is there any testimony from

         24  our Captain?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  No, this
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          2  is the, this was the Administration's --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, great.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  --

          5  Testimony.  We're --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Let me --

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  -- Both

          8  here to answer questions.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         10  much, and again, we are going to vote on this bill,

         11  and I expect this bill to pass.  But,

         12  notwithstanding that, I do want to appreciate what

         13  the DOT has done in terms providing the ferry

         14  service.  I think this is a, something that we are

         15  not agreeing on today, but in the Council, we do

         16  feel that it is necessary to increase the capacity

         17  of the ferry service with or without the demand.

         18                 We believe that the demand is there

         19  for the service.  Your testimony indicates

         20  otherwise.  But, with or without that demand, I

         21  believe that this needs to take place. We're going

         22  to have some questions for you from our colleagues

         23  here.  But, I, at this time, would like to ask the

         24  Clerk to call the roll for Members the who do have

         25  multiple Committee assignments at this very moment,
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          2  and that they need to get back to other Committees

          3  as well.  Please call the roll for Council Member

          4  Oliver Koppell and Council Member Miguel Martinez

          5  and Council Member Larry Seabrook.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Koppell.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I vote aye,

          8  Mr. Chairman.  And apologize, I have two other

          9  committee meetings, one of which is continuing.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

         12  Martinez.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Mr. Chair,

         14  I vote aye, and I also want to apologize, I also

         15  have other engagements.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

         18  Seabrook.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Thank you

         20  very much Mr. Chairman, and I vote aye also and on

         21  my way to another meeting.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  I'll

         23  join you shortly at those other Hearings.  We have,

         24  I have a quick question and we have questions from a

         25  couple of Members here. What is the total budget of
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          2  the Staten Island Ferry?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSION WOLOCH:  Jimmy.

          4                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  I think the actual

          5  operating budget is around $45 million, but there,

          6  obviously there are other funds from the federal,

          7  state and other sources, having to do with new

          8  construction of terminals and so forth.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, the annual

         10  operating budget paid for by the City of New York is

         11  roughly $45 million?  Great. So, we're talking about

         12  a, probably about an 11 or 12 percent increase in

         13  the budget.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  The

         15  additional $5 million, correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  That's correct,

         17  okay.

         18                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  But, that would

         19  not include the capital costs going forward for

         20  replacing vessels prematurely.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Sure, neither are

         22  you including in the $45 million capital costs.

         23  Questions from Council Member Oddo.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Can you tell me

         25  the overall budget for DOT?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSION WOLOCH:  I think

          3  our expense budget is about $400 million.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  $400 million,

          5  okay.  I know that your bailiwick is transportation,

          6  but could you answer this question for me?  Why is

          7  it that we don't dump garbage, which is a very

          8  costly endeavor, why don't we just dump garbage in

          9  Central Park?  You know, we're worrying about the

         10  bottom line, it costs money, why don't we just dump

         11  garbage in Central Park?  Isn't that a cheaper way?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I would

         13  hate to comment on a question having to do with the

         14  Department of Sanitation --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  That's fair

         16  enough

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  --

         18  Council Member Oddo.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Well, I raise

         20  those two issues to, in response to your question to

         21  us about where we would find the budget reductions.

         22  I guess it's all about context.  See, you see it as

         23  an additional $3.5 million relative to last year's

         24  budget.  We see it in a bigger context of a

         25  responsibility by a City agency to provide services
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          2  to five boroughs.

          3                 You know what? Sometimes providing

          4  services cost money.  Sometimes it's expensive to

          5  put police officers on the street.  Sometimes it's

          6  expensive to put fire, open firehouses, and

          7  sometimes it's expensive to afford one of the five

          8  boroughs a mode of transportation.  So, to answer

          9  your question that you posed to us, it's up to you

         10  and your Commissioner and this Administration to

         11  take $400 million allocated to DOT and establish

         12  priorities.

         13                 The position of the Staten Island

         14  delegation and now with the position of the

         15  Transportation Committee and very soon, the position

         16  of the City Council, is that we think that within

         17  that $400 million that you spend, you have to

         18  provide a modicum of services to the Staten Island

         19  public.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  And I

         21  think our feeling is, and I think that reality is,

         22  that the Staten Island Ferry operation is an

         23  extremely important part of the agency, that we do

         24  devote a lot of resources to, but, and we frequently

         25  will make, will make adjustments to different
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          2  services, and you know, more money will be spent on

          3  a service that might have been spent last year, but

          4  hard decisions have to go along with that. And, $5

          5  million, frankly, is a significant, significant

          6  dollar amount.  Something real has to happen to come

          7  up with that money.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

          9  Questions from Council Member McMahon.  I'm sorry,

         10  Council Member Lanza.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  Commissioner

         12  Woloch -- thank you Mr. Chairman, Commissioner

         13  Woloch, you didn't pull any punches during your

         14  testimony and I won't either here.  I have to tell

         15  you that your testimony was almost as insulting to

         16  the people of Staten Island as the lack of ferry

         17  service and the lack of public transportation.

         18                 I don't know where to begin.  I'll

         19  pick up on what Councilman Oddo talked about.  You

         20  want to talk about the cost of the service?  We can

         21  play that game with respect to all City services in

         22  this City.  We could talk about how expensive the

         23  subway system is, how expensive the bus system is.

         24  We could talk about how -- but that's your job and

         25  there are taxpayers out on Staten Island that pay
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          2  for that service, deserve that service.

          3                 I want to point out a flaw in the

          4  logic in one piece of your testimony with respect to

          5  whether or not people, there's a need or a demand

          6  for the overnight service.  You have to keep in

          7  mind, and I'm sure you have no clue, and no idea

          8  what it's like to be a Staten Island commuter, and

          9  perhaps you should live that life every so often to

         10  understand and appreciate what a Staten Island

         11  commuter goes through, so perhaps you can do your

         12  job better.

         13                 But, keep in mind that the Staten

         14  Islander commuter has, at very best, a three- leg

         15  journey.  First, they need to travel to the ferry

         16  from wherever it is they work in Manhattan, whether

         17  that's subway or bus.  Then, they need to get on the

         18  ferry, and then when they get to the ferry, the

         19  journey is not over, they need to get on a train or

         20  a bus and typically endure another half hour leg of

         21  their journey.  So, I would imagine that you can

         22  understand, if you thought about it, in that

         23  context, that if you knew that as part of a three

         24  leg journey, you had a one hour wait for one leg of

         25  that journey, you would probably do everything in
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          2  your power to find another way to get home.

          3                 So, people do everything they can to

          4  avoid the insult of waiting for an hour in a

          5  facility that is severely lacking for a boat that

          6  may or may not come.  Typically, comes, but best

          7  case scenario, it comes in an hour.  So, if you

          8  provide the service, as they say, and what

          9  Councilman McMahon has said from the beginning, they

         10  all come, because it will be more realistic to

         11  factor into a schedule with respect to the service.

         12                 So, the last point I want to make is

         13  that if there was any doubt in the minds of any of

         14  my colleagues in this body, as to whether or not to

         15  support this legislation, to give some, some relief,

         16  that doesn't go nearly as far as it ought to with

         17  respect to the train, and it's not all your fault,

         18  I'm talking about the lack of bus service and lack

         19  of transit infrastructure on Staten Island, but if

         20  there was any doubt in the minds of any of my

         21  colleagues as to whether or not to support this

         22  legislation, I want to thank you for removing that

         23  doubt.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  If I

         25  could just comment, we at DOT clearly recognize that
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          2  if you make improvements to service, you're going to

          3  attract more customers. I think, similarly, we have

          4  gone to great lengths, as we've describe and as

          5  we've described before this Committee numerous

          6  times, to totally revamp this operation.

          7                 We are on the cusp of replacing

          8  virtually half of the fleet with state- of- the- art

          9  boats.  We're on the cusp of finishing two brand new

         10  terminals.  We are revamping the, the way the

         11  organization works itself.  We are going to have a

         12  brand new service, and we recognize that if you take

         13  steps like that and you do attract more customers,

         14  sure.  You know, I understand that more frequent

         15  service is another way to attract customers.  But,

         16  it still doesn't subtract from the bottom line that,

         17  at the end of the day, these aren't service we could

         18  just wish for.  They do have to get paid for.  In an

         19  ideal world, we'd have service running around the

         20  clock, 15 minutes.  But, there's a fiscal reality

         21  that I think all of us, collectively, have to bear

         22  in mind as we think about these issues and make

         23  decisions about these issues.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Deputy

         25  Commissioner. Could you state your name, one again
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          2  for the record, we had a problem with the mic

          3  before.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Sure,

          5  it's David Woloch, Deputy Commissioner for External

          6  Affairs.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

          8  Questions from Council Member McMahon.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Thank you

         10  Mr. Chairman. Exactly on that point, the choices

         11  that we make about our budget and about our policies

         12  and the service we provide are choices that are made

         13  between the City Council and the Administration.

         14  Would you agree with that?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Sure.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Okay.  And,

         17  would you also agree that in the  '90's, the City

         18  Council passed a law that said that the Staten

         19  Island Ferry should be free?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  As I

         21  recall, the previous Administration helped put that

         22  law into, into effect.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  No, because

         24  I'm speaking to your opening salvo about the City

         25  Council doesn't have the power to do this and we're
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          2  violating separation of powers and we're

          3  micromanaging.  Isn't it correct that the City

          4  Council passed a bill that required this ferry to be

          5  free?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I

          7  honestly can't recall exactly how that occurred, but

          8  I'll take you, I'll take your word.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Isn't it

         10  also correct that the City Council's passed laws

         11  mandating a minimum amount of recycling pick- ups on

         12  a weekly basis throughout the City of New York?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Sure.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Okay, so can

         15  you tell me how establishing a minimum amount of

         16  service for the Staten Island Ferry is any different

         17  from a charter legal position?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I, you

         19  know, I can't speak to the, to the legal or

         20  technical differences between this bill and others.

         21  But, I can say that pinpointing the exact schedule

         22  for a transit operation --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Oh, no, no, no,

         24  you can run more boats --

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  --
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          2  Micromanaging --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  -- You can

          4  run more boats, we're establishing minimums of

          5  service and, clearly, that is within the powers of

          6  the City Council, as contemplated by the City

          7  Charter.  Yet, you've testified in quite a different

          8  fashion here and I want to clarify that for the

          9  record.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I

         11  believe the Administration disagrees with that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Well,

         13  clearly, unless you guys see the light and

         14  understand how important this is and how basic this

         15  is to Staten Islanders, I fear that maybe a judge

         16  will have to determine that, and clearly we want to

         17  have the record satisfied.

         18                 Now, you said in your testimony,

         19  basically, that the City is committed to maintaining

         20  service and doing all these goods things for the

         21  people of the Staten Island Ferry.  Are you aware

         22  that in the Executive Budget of 2003, the Department

         23  and the Administration proposed cutting the service

         24  that exists now and actually proposed running less

         25  boats that are run now, cutting a boat out during
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          2  rush hour and cutting the off- peak service even

          3  more than what we have now?  Are you aware of that

          4  Deputy Commissioner?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Sure.

          6  Look, I think, you know, again, economic

          7  circumstances and the fiscal condition of the City

          8  will go up and down.  It will change from year to

          9  year, and I think, you know, every year, every

         10  agency in the Administration has to make decisions

         11  about where, where money should be spent and, if

         12  necessary, where cuts have to be made.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Well, I

         14  think that --

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  But, in

         16  fact, those cuts, those cuts were not made.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  They weren't

         18  made because we scrambled into Albany and we got

         19  Assembly Members and Senators to say that they were

         20  not going to pass the City's piece of the budget up

         21  there unless they laid off the ferry service.  I

         22  mean, we can't do that every time.  So, what you're

         23  saying is that even though the Administration and

         24  the Department have all of these great, this great

         25  appreciation for ferry service and how important it

                                                            39

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  is, another fiscal crisis can come along, and you

          3  guys will cut ferry service again, if you have to,

          4  because it's not a priority for you?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

          6  it's unfair to say it's not a priority.  I mean,

          7  within, certain, within the past year, in

          8  particular, we've devoted an inordinate amount of

          9  resources and energy into improving this operation.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Let's not

         11  talk about the sad and tragic reasons that that has

         12  happened.  I'm not here to take cheap shots.  What I

         13  am here to say is that you guys really don't

         14  prioritize service, the fairness that it represents

         15  to Staten Islanders, and that's why this bill is

         16  necessary, and it is being done within the Charter-

         17  provided powers of the City Council.

         18                 You talk about nighttime service and

         19  about how the investigation report didn't look into

         20  the numbers of nighttime service.  Well, quite

         21  frankly, the point is this, the numbers of nighttime

         22  service are not so argued about because they vary

         23  from boat to boat, but what number per boat would be

         24  necessary in the Department's mind to require extra

         25  service?  Because, you did state that there were 600
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          2  people on a boat, who waited for an hour for that

          3  boat.  How many have to sit there and wait until you

          4  think it's time to run a boat every half hour?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I can't

          6  pinpoint an exact number.  I mean, again, the range

          7  was, I think, from, you know, 25 or so at the low

          8  end, 500 at the highest end.  I don't know what the

          9  exact number is, but, overall, I think it's pretty

         10  clear that nighttime ridership is much lower than

         11  the rest of the day and --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  But, as you

         13  said --

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  -- And

         15  if we were to provide this service at these rates,

         16  we would be, we would be spending an inordinate

         17  amount per passenger.  In fact, at $10.00 a

         18  passenger, we probably could provide a taxi service

         19  for three people and get them from Whitehall to St.

         20  George.  It's a lot of money, it's a lot of money --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  You see,

         22  that underscores Council Member Lanza's point that

         23  you better become a Staten Islander commuter for a

         24  month, and then you would understand that it ain't

         25  going to cost you ten bucks, if you can, there are
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          2  no taxis, by the way, at that time.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  You

          4  understand my point, though.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  No, but you

          6  don't understand --

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  $10.00

          8  per person is an inordinate amount --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  But, you

         10  said if you increase the service, they will come, or

         11  as my friend, John Luisi says, if you sail them,

         12  they will ride them.  But, the point is this, if 600

         13  people from Manhattan were sitting around, waiting

         14  for an hour for their commute home, do you think

         15  that we would be having this discussion, or would

         16  the service be provided?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSION WOLOCH:  You know,

         18  look, I can't speak, you know, most of the transit

         19  service for Manhattanites is provided by, provided

         20  by the MTA, so I can't really speak to that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Okay, two

         22  more questions. But, as the other chart there shows,

         23  they have a lot more availability.  You are it for

         24  us, Deputy Commissioner.  You are our lifeline.  We

         25  have no options.  There is no bus.  There is no
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          2  tram.  There is no subway.  It is the ferry and we

          3  are demanding with this bill to be treated equally.

          4                 Just two last questions.  You said

          5  that in the evening we run the Austen and the Nobel

          6  (phonetic), right?  Now, the Austen has been sitting

          7  down on the maintenance pier, looks like it's been

          8  gutted out.  What's going on with the Austen?

          9                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  The Austen is

         10  having emissions reduction systems installed on

         11  that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  But it looks

         13  like the Windows are gone.  It looks like it's been,

         14  it looks like a skeleton.

         15                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  No.  The vessel is

         16  undergoing the installation of an emissions

         17  reduction system and nothing else.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  When is the

         19  last time it sailed?

         20                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  It sailed in

         21  August.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  So, it's

         23  been out of service since August?

         24                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  And the new
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          2  houses sitting over at the Kadell (phonetic) dock,

          3  what's it doing there?

          4                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  The new houses has

          5  been moved over to the Kadell's for its routine dry-

          6  docking.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  How long has

          8  it been out of service?

          9                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  That boat has been

         10  out of service since the end of October.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  In February,

         12  has that affected the operating of schedules, your

         13  having two boats out of service?

         14                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  Well, in other

         15  words, we're tighter in the sense that we don't have

         16  redundancy of equipment.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  How many

         18  boats missed their run in the last two weekends?

         19  How many boats were not run?

         20                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  We usually end up

         21  missing one to three runs each weekend, primarily

         22  due to security sweeps, which, in essence, delay the

         23  boat and the boat cannot catch up on its run.  So,

         24  then a run has to be cancelled to get the system

         25  back on schedule.
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          2                 COUNCIL MCMAHON:  Would you give me

          3  those numbers again?  Every weekend, how many are

          4  cancelled?

          5                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  I would, no, on

          6  each, on Saturday and Sunday, I would say between

          7  two and four runs get cancelled, depending on the

          8  crowds.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Two to four

         10  runs?

         11                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  So, that's

         13  why when last weekend when my son was supposed come

         14  home from school on Saturday at 4:30, he didn't

         15  come, and at 5:00 he didn't come, and at 5:30 he

         16  finally came and sat there for an hour and a half?

         17                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  That could be.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Because of

         19  security concerns?

         20                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  When you -- it's

         21  not security concerns, the numbers of people riding

         22  the boats during the day, you get a lot of tourist

         23  traffic during the day on the weekends, all of the

         24  passengers have to clear the vessel, the vessel then

         25  has to be sweeped for security, and then the
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          2  passengers loaded back on board.  You know,

          3  Commissioner, excuse me, Counselor (sic) --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Don't

          5  promote me yet.

          6                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  Okay.  No, all

          7  kidding aside, I mean I have been down there with a

          8  stop watch myself, and the runs are tight enough

          9  that if you have a heavy load on the boat, waiting

         10  for people to get off the boat, then sweep the boat

         11  for security purposes and then load everyone back on

         12  board, all you really need is some traffic in the

         13  harbor or something else to slow the boat down and

         14  it's not possible to make up the schedule unless --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  I conclude

         16  with this -- I have to conclude, but, so in other

         17  words, there are so many people on the ferry that

         18  you can't unload them in time, yet you're telling us

         19  that it's not necessary to run another boat. Thank

         20  you, thank you very much.  Stop, Chairman.  Thank

         21  you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

         23  Member McMahon and the final question is from

         24  Council Member Sears.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you Mr.
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          2  Chair.  It's good to see you Commissioner.  Tell me,

          3  do you know approximately what is your reverse peak

          4  volume?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I

          6  believe it's fairly similar --

          7                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  Oh, I see what you

          8  mean, the a.m. Commute versus p.m. --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Not everybody

         10  lives on Staten Island that works on Staten Island.

         11  Yea, that's the reverse peak, when I last worked in

         12  transportation.

         13                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  Yea, I do not

         14  know, and there again, once the terminals are

         15  completed, we will have the necessary computer-

         16  based equipment in place to really accurately assess

         17  what is going on there.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  That would be

         19  very helpful, actually, because what's happening

         20  with this delay, and I would agree, because I've

         21  gone to Staten Island a lot when I lived in

         22  Brooklyn, and you're missing a whole population.

         23  Because, not everybody on Staten Island is in

         24  reverse peak or in the peak hour.  You know it?

         25  You're predominantly eliminating women who need that
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          2  service.

          3                 Let's just put it in that context

          4  because you have the working people, and they make

          5  up the peak hour.  There's a whole volume of people

          6  that are left on Staten Island.  They're the mothers

          7  who have to pick- up their kids from school.

          8  They're the high schools that travel.  There's a

          9  whole thing, and to have to wait for the time that

         10  they have to wait to come back, I can tell you is

         11  almost forming isolation, because they think twice

         12  about when they're going to come back, and the

         13  delays and the traffic in the harbor, and I

         14  understand very well the traffic and what the Coast

         15  Guard's rules and regulations are for that.

         16                 But, it would seem that you really

         17  need to look at just who else are you really

         18  servicing, and to have to wait for this kind of

         19  time, and I recognize the population of Staten

         20  Island may not be that of Queens, it may not be that

         21  of Brooklyn, and it may not be that of the Bronx.

         22  The fact is, it's part of New York City and they

         23  deserve as much consideration for how they get to

         24  and from work, how their families get to other

         25  boroughs and into Manhattan.  In not spending the
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          2  money to increase the service -- have you looked at,

          3  when you do that, what would be the increase in

          4  revenue if you were to add additional ferries? What

          5  would be that increase in revenue?  You're bound to

          6  have more people using it.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Well, we

          8  don't charge for the ferries, so --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Well --

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  --

         11  Unfortunately, for everybody there wouldn't be a

         12  revenue impact on the ferry operation itself.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Okay.

         14                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  There's no revenue

         15  side --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I realize

         17  that.

         18                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  -- It would only

         19  be an expense.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Okay.  Well,

         21  then maybe you have to look at how you generate

         22  revenue on that ferry.  That would help a little bit

         23  to do that.  The fact is that people on Staten

         24  Island really need it.  They really do, and I've

         25  spent, as I said, a lot of time on there and if you
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          2  don't have enough to encourage people to get out and

          3  spend their dollars, not only in Staten Island, but

          4  in the rest of the City, you're actually being very

          5  detrimental to the economy.

          6                 People on Staten Island use the other

          7  boroughs and they certainly get into Manhattan, and

          8  I think that that daytime population on Staten

          9  Island would be using more and more if they knew

         10  that they could meet a schedule for returning home

         11  and meeting their obligations.  I think you need to

         12  consider that.

         13                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  You know, this

         14  bill doesn't address that time of the day.  This

         15  bill is talking specifically to the morning commute,

         16  weekend and overnight service.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I understand.

         18                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  Apparently --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I understand

         20  that.

         21                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  -- It's Saturday,

         22  you know, service.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I understand

         24  what it's doing, but I think that if you were to

         25  look at what you would do in the whole concept of
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          2  this, that you would be doing a far greater service,

          3  and you may be able to look at how you can afford to

          4  do that.  That's what I'm saying.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSION WOLOCH:  And I

          6  could just repeat a comment that Captain Desimone

          7  made earlier, we are going to be in a much better

          8  position next year to collect data, ridership data,

          9  in ways we've never been able to do before, and that

         10  will allow us to take a much closer look at the

         11  schedules --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Alright, how

         13  do you do that?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  --

         15  Rapidly --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Do you have,

         17  do you have a form developed on that that would give

         18  you pertinent information in order to --

         19                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  When --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  -- That needs

         21  improvement?

         22                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  When the new

         23  terminals are completed, they will be equipped with

         24  turnstiles that will be computer- based and will

         25  track each passenger that enters the terminal, and
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          2  that will be fed into a database that we will be

          3  able to, essentially, look at any type of trend,

          4  timeframe or what have you, to determine the number

          5  of people who are actually using the facility or the

          6  service, which, right now, it's, it's crude, to say

          7  the least, as to how --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Yea.

          9                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  -- The numbers are

         10  generated. So, I mean, I'm looking forward to that,

         11  to being able to really look at this and say, what

         12  are we doing?  So, you know, that's something I

         13  think we're all looking forward to.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  And it's very

         15  much needed, and I think --

         16                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  Oh, absolutely.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  -- At the same

         18  time that you're doing that, considering how long

         19  the ferry has been running and how long Staten

         20  Island has been there, that you also need to look at

         21  what the request is and what this bill is

         22  addressing.  I can tell you I support it because I

         23  think it's necessary.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

         25  Member Sears. Deputy Commissioner, Captain, I want
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          2  to thank you for joining us this morning.

          3                 CAPTAIN DESIMONE:  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Let me call up the

          5  next panel, the next and final panel, Keith

          6  Parascandola, representing Assemblyman John Lavelle,

          7  John Luisi and Tamara Coombs.  Keith, please

          8  proceed.

          9                 MR. PARASCANDOLA:  Hi.  My name is

         10  Keith Parascandola.  I am Assemblyman John Lavelle's

         11  Chief of Staff. Unfortunately, he cannot be here

         12  today.  He's up in Albany.  He'd like me to read

         13  this statement.

         14                 On behalf of the Assemblyman, I would

         15  like to thank you for this opportunity to have my

         16  comments on the proposed change in service for the

         17  Staten Island Ferry heard. The Staten Island Ferry

         18  is the only direct public transportation route

         19  between Staten Island and Manhattan, and is used by

         20  thousands as a gateway into the other boroughs.  It

         21  is used by many to get to and from work, as well as

         22  to get to the many attractions Manhattan and the

         23  rest of the City has to offer.

         24                 Often, Staten Islanders have found

         25  taking the Staten Island Ferry after rush hour and
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          2  on weekends to be quite a hassle.  It would cause

          3  great public outrage if any subway line running

          4  through Lower Manhattan ran on the same schedule as

          5  the Staten Island Ferry.  Most nights, after 11:00

          6  p.m., the ferry ceases to run every 30 minutes, and

          7  begins operating every hour. This leaves many late

          8  night travelers stranded with waits up to an hour

          9  long.  This is disgraceful.  To imagine one train to

         10  Midtown every hour would cause a tremendous strain

         11  on commuters. The same is true for hourly service on

         12  the Staten Island Ferry after 11:00 p.m.

         13                 With the recent proposal by the MTA

         14  to raise fare of the express bus service to $6.00

         15  per trip, it is of paramount importance to give

         16  Staten Islanders a viable and efficient public

         17  transportation option.  Increasing the service of

         18  the Staten Island Ferry will do just that.

         19                 It is imperative for the commuters on

         20  and off of Staten Island to have efficient access to

         21  quality public transportation.  New York City is the

         22  City that never sleeps, and believe it or not, that

         23  statement is true for all the boroughs, including

         24  Staten Island.  Staten Islanders not, Staten

         25  Islanders do not stop traveling after 7:00 p.m.  It
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          2  is time that Staten Island be treated like the rest

          3  of the City and have service increased for the

          4  Staten Island Ferry.

          5                 The Assemblyman and myself would

          6  like, fully support the efforts of Councilman

          7  McMahon and the rest of the New York City Council to

          8  amend the Administrative Code of the City of New

          9  York to increase service on the Staten Island Ferry

         10  to better serve our borough.

         11                 On a personal note, I'd like to

         12  invite any of the City Council Members, the skeptics

         13  and the supporters, to join me and the Assemblyman

         14  for a trip on the Staten Island Ferry at 11:01 p.m.,

         15  any day of the week.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  John --

         17  well, why don't you guys, yea.

         18                 MS. COOMBS:  Good morning Mr.

         19  Chairman, Council Members.  I'm Tamara Coombs, Chair

         20  of the Ferry Riders Committee. Next year, at this

         21  time, we will have two state- of- the- art terminals

         22  and three new boats for the Staten Island Ferry.

         23  The ferries being replaced are nearly 40 years old.

         24  The last St. George Terminal was built on the cheap,

         25  after the earlier one burned in 1946.  But, we're
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          2  getting there is an extensive rehabilitation.  The

          3  Whitehall Terminal burned 13 years ago in 1991.

          4                 Since 1991, there's been no place to

          5  buy a cup of coffee at the temporary terminal or the

          6  one now nearing completion.  The good news is, if

          7  you miss the 7:30 p.m. Boat bound for Staten Island

          8  on a Saturday or Sunday evening, you have an hour to

          9  walk up to the McDonald's and get yourself a cup of

         10  caffeine.  The bad news is the walk isn't much fun,

         11  especially when a cold wind is blowing down

         12  Broadway.

         13                 If you works nights in Manhattan and

         14  miss the 2:30 a.m. Boat home, you will be climbing

         15  onto a bus in St. George at 4:00 a.m.  If you live

         16  on Staten Island and have to be at work in Lower

         17  Manhattan at 5:30 a.m.  You have to take a 4:00 a.m.

         18  Boat out of St. George.

         19                 Having a boat once an hour doesn't

         20  add just a half hour to your journey.  It can easily

         21  add an hour or an hour and a half, or more.  Do you

         22  know I can drive from my house to Philadelphia in an

         23  hour and a half?  At 2:00 in the morning I can also

         24  catch a subway in Queens or the Bronx.  A subway

         25  bound for Whitehall or South Ferry or Bowling Green,

                                                            56

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  a subway that comes at least every 20 minutes.  I

          3  can guarantee you that the subway cars will not be

          4  packed with people.  I frequently ride in near empty

          5  subway cars and near empty buses and not at 2:00

          6  a.m.  No one suggests that we run subways once an

          7  hour late at night and once an hour on weekend

          8  mornings and evenings.  The very idea is ridiculous.

          9                 The question of demand was brought up

         10  by the Deputy Commissioner.  How can they know what

         11  the demand would be? Who would take an hourly ferry

         12  in the middle of the night, except someone who had

         13  no other choice?  Someone who could not afford to

         14  drive a car into town, could not afford to pay the

         15  tolls, could not afford to pay for parking.  I'm

         16  told it costs $70.00, not $10.00, to take a cab from

         17  Whitehall to Staten Island in the middle of the

         18  night.

         19                 One member of our Committee works

         20  late, near Brooklyn's Borough Hall.  The Borough

         21  Hall stop is one stop away from Bowling Green, but

         22  he finds he gets home faster if he takes a subway

         23  through Brooklyn to the bus that crosses the

         24  Verranzano Narrows Bridge, then changes buses to the

         25  one that goes to the St. George Terminal, then gets
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          2  on a bus in St. George to take him the rest of the

          3  way home.

          4                 The numbers we had heard earlier is

          5  that this additional service would cost $3 million

          6  to provide a half hourly service.  As a ferry rider

          7  pointed out to me, what we're spending on

          8  infrastructure would pay for a 100 years of such

          9  service. But, to put that $300 million in some

         10  context, the temporary World Trade Center PATH

         11  station cost $323 million and the permanent

         12  intermodal PATH facility at WTC will cost $2

         13  billion. I understand PATH is under the Port

         14  Authority, but it's all public money.

         15                 Do you know the PATH trains to the

         16  World Trade Center run every 15 minutes on weekends

         17  and every half hour all night long?  How many people

         18  are on those trains?  PATH ridership to the World

         19  Trade Center is about 38,000 a day now, and it's

         20  about 32,000 that take the ferry from Staten Island

         21  to Whitehall every day.

         22                 The Staten Island Ferry is not free.

         23  It is subsidized, and so are the subways and the

         24  buses and trains. They all lose money.  Some things

         25  could be done to ensure that they lose less money.
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          2  In the case of the ferry, there is no question that

          3  the millions of tourists who would happily pay for

          4  their ride.  It would be great to do something about

          5  the union contract that guarantees overtime.  Hourly

          6  service on the ferry began, for the first time, in

          7  1967, when that 30 week, 30- hour work week contract

          8  was signed.  But, Staten Islanders are entitled to

          9  one City, one fare.  The ferry is our Brooklyn

         10  Bridge.

         11                 In 1967, an engineer named Benjamin

         12  Malls (phonetic) of Castleton Corners commented, if

         13  you're going to approach public transportation on

         14  the basis of money, the forget it.  I suggest that

         15  we can't forget it.  I suggest that you don't forget

         16  it.  I suggest that you begin to give Staten

         17  Islanders transportation parity with the other

         18  boroughs and Newark, New Jersey.

         19                 October 25, 2005 is the 100th

         20  anniversary of the Municipal Staten Island Ferry.

         21  There could be no better early birthday present than

         22  the service we so sorely need and so richly deserve.

         23    Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Mr.

         25  Luisi.
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          2                 MR. LUISI:  My name is John Luisi.

          3  I'm a Member of the Ferry Riders Committee, also a

          4  St. George resident, and the occasional user of that

          5  cab ride, which Deputy Commission Woloch contends

          6  cost $30.00.  It's actually, the ride itself is a

          7  little bit over $50.00.  The cab driver has to

          8  charge for the $8.00 toll for the Verranzano Bridge,

          9  which people still are in awe over and will be more

         10  so when it goes up to $9.00, and then it's nice to

         11  give the cab driver a tip too.  So, it does add up

         12  to $70.00.

         13                 Listening to the testimony, I was, it

         14  struck me that it was, at best, disingenuous and,

         15  one fantasy that occurred to me while I was sitting

         16  there was that New York City currently has a

         17  requirement that many of the employees, certainly

         18  most of the employees, are required to live within

         19  the City limits and it's for a number of reasons.

         20  It's for people to be able to understand the issues,

         21  as well as to generate the tax revenue that

         22  contributes to their own salaries.

         23                 DOT is probably, the best word I can

         24  think of, is clueless about the service demands that

         25  are required by people who live on Staten Island.
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          2  As our three Council Members, you know, who we

          3  regard as our knights in shining armor, to basically

          4  advance this cause, as no others have before them.

          5  It would be interesting if DOT, whose primary

          6  mandate is to move cars, not people.  As

          7  Commissioner Woloch pointed out, Deputy Commissioner

          8  Woloch pointed out a couple of times.  So, that's,

          9  subways and buses or, that's the MTA, that's not us.

         10    They really don't care about moving people.

         11                 It would be interesting if there were

         12  to be a residency requirement for the people who run

         13  the ferry to actually live on Staten Island and be

         14  subject to the same whimsical schedule and changes

         15  to that schedule that we, as Staten Islanders, are

         16  subject to.  It would be a phenomenal perspective,

         17  change in perspective that would be brought to bear.

         18  They simply have no idea.

         19                 If they're going to talk about the

         20  fact that the per passenger use has to come down to

         21  a certain amount, and essentially, making the

         22  argument that service has to pay for itself, I'd

         23  like to see them put turnstiles up around Prospect

         24  Park.  There are certain City services that are

         25  provided for the benefit of, of the people at large,
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          2  and perhaps if Commissioner Weinshall had to pay to

          3  get into Prospect Park, so that we could have that

          4  contributed towards the budget for the maintenance

          5  of the park and the people who work there, perhaps

          6  she would understand the concept of the fact that

          7  our tax dollars are already going to pay for this

          8  ferry service.

          9                 I work in real estate, I'm an

         10  attorney, I know of large New York City developers

         11  who own large parcels of land that are near the

         12  ferry terminal, who have actually made the comment

         13  that they're not going to develop that land until

         14  they can see that service would be, service on the

         15  ferry would be at such a level that it would bring

         16  it into, into the modern age, essentially, that,

         17  these, these are buildings that they would like to

         18  put up, office buildings, that would generate

         19  millions of dollars in tax revenue.  If the ferry

         20  could be respectable enough of a trip to make it so

         21  that some of their workers, who would be commuting

         22  from Manhattan and from Manhattan by way of

         23  Brooklyn, taking mass transit, would be willing to

         24  take that ferry, would be willing to chance it,

         25  having to come in either on the weekends, or having
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          2  to go home late at night, to know that that service

          3  was regular enough, they would then go and build

          4  those buildings.

          5                 If they want to talk about service

          6  paying for itself, there is economic development

          7  which seems to be the whole focus of this

          8  Administration that's missing the boat, if you will,

          9  that if you build it, people will come.  If there is

         10  demand, people will, if there's service, people will

         11  start to take advantage of the opportunities that

         12  are there.

         13                 It's really disgusting how, how,

         14  again, at this point, the only people who take this

         15  ferry, for the most part, are people who have no

         16  choice or people who don't know.  Excuse me.

         17                 The analysis that they provided, as

         18  far as their ridership, you'll notice that Deputy

         19  Commissioner Woloch didn't tell you when these

         20  counts were taken.  They were taken shortly after

         21  service was restored after it had been cut off

         22  entirely, after the, the attack on the Trade Center,

         23  when ridership was at an all time low.  That was

         24  when the ridership was counted and that's where

         25  they're using these numbers to justify the abysmal

                                                            63

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  level of service.

          3                 Essentially, the best way to reduce

          4  demand is to reduce the service and make it erratic.

          5    You know, anybody who has been involved in any

          6  level of business at any point certainly knows that

          7  to be so.  But, essentially, I would think that, I

          8  congratulate the Council for what DOT calls

          9  micromanagement, we certainly see it as correcting

         10  mismanagement, and would propose that perhaps the

         11  Council ought to go one step further and propose

         12  that residency requirement and see what they have to

         13  say about that.  Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  One

         15  brief question from Council Member Sanders.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Thank you

         17  very much Mr. Chair.  I was just, actually, against

         18  the advice of counsel, I should say, that I was just

         19  agreeing with some of the speakers from Staten

         20  Island where the residency requirement, I think it's

         21  a good thing.  We should have it in New York City,

         22  as a matter of fact.  Well, let's not stop at Staten

         23  Island.  There's a couple more boroughs, four at

         24  least, that we should have it in.

         25                 I found it interesting that there was
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          2  an idea of including a 25 cents fare for people

          3  taking the ferry.  I think that that has merit also.

          4    I will stop right there and allow --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yeah, I think you

          6  better.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  -- Counsel

          8  to help me.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

         10  Member Sanders.  At this point I would like to ask

         11  the Clerk to call the roll on this bill.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member Liu.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Reyna.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Addabbo.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Mr. Chair,

         18  very briefly. You know, when we brought up costs and

         19  the Administration brings up costs, you know, in a

         20  $47 billion budget, the $5 million or so to run this

         21  proposed law, I think they can find that.  So, for

         22  the sake of efficiency, for the sake of my

         23  colleagues in Staten Island and for the sake of the

         24  people of Staten Island, I am a proud co- sponsor of

         25  this bill and I vote yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Sanders.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Absolutely,

          5  yes.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Sears.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Lanza.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  Permission to

         10  comment before my vote?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  Thanks Mr.

         13  Chair.  I just want to thank Councilwoman Sears for

         14  so eloquently demonstrating that as long as Staten

         15  Island is part of this City, that this has

         16  implications and is not only a Staten Island issue,

         17  but a New York City issue, and I want to thank you

         18  Councilwoman Sears and you, Mr. Chair, for

         19  appreciating and understanding that as well, and I

         20  vote aye, and I want to congratulate Councilman

         21  McMahon.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of nine in

         23  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         24  abstentions, the item is adopted.  Council Members,

         25  please sign the Committee Report. Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  There

          3  being no other witnesses, this Hearing is now

          4  adjourned.

          5                 (Meeting adjourned at 12:00 p.m.)
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